

Rules Part II

September 14, 2023

SERS

3309-1-04 Election of retirement board members (Emergency)

3309-1-18 Payment of contributions

HPRS

5505-7-10 Employee contributions

3309-1-04

Election of retirement board members.

(A) The school employees retirement board shall conduct elections in accordance with Chapter 3309. of the Revised Code and this rule.

(B) Notifications

(1) At a regular meeting of the retirement board but no later than July in the fiscal year in which an election of members to the board is required, the retirement board shall establish an election time schedule.

(2) This schedule shall include, a statement of the requirements for nomination by petition, the date after which nominating petitions shall be available, the final date for receipt of completed nominating petitions, the final date for receipt of completed election ballots being the first Monday in March, and the date and place for the election count to be conducted under the supervision of judges as designated in paragraph (D) of this rule.

(C) Nominations

(1) Candidates for board members shall be nominated by petition on forms provided by the school employees retirement system. Petitions shall be made available in paper and electronic format. Electronic signatures shall be permitted.

(2)

(a) Not later than the last business day of September in the fiscal year in which an election is held for an employee member, notice of election posters shall be sent to employers and petitions and required forms shall be available to members.

(b) Any member, except a member receiving a disability benefit pursuant to section 3309.40 or 3309.401 of the Revised Code, who is not otherwise ineligible under Chapter 3309. of the Revised Code, may be nominated for election as an employee member of the board by petitions that contain at least five hundred valid nominating signatures with not less than twenty signatures of members from each of at least ten different counties in Ohio. In order for a nominating signature to be valid, the member must be actively contributing to SERS and their SERS ID or last four digits of their social security number and the name of their school employer and the county in which the employer is located must be provided. The member's place of employment shall determine the county for such member.

(3)

- (a) Not later than the last business day of September in the fiscal year in which an election is held for a retirant member, a notice of election shall be sent to retirants at their home addresses of record and petitions and required forms shall be available to retirants.
- (b) Any retirant, who is not otherwise ineligible under Chapter 3309, of the Revised Code, may be nominated for election as a retirant member by petitions which contain at least one hundred fifty valid nominating signatures, with not less than ten signatures of retirants from each of at least five different counties in Ohio. In order for a nominating signature to be valid, the retirant's SERS ID or last four digits of their social security number, their home address and county must be provided. The retirant's place of residence shall determine the county of such retirant.

(4)

- (a) Petitions and completed required forms for a candidate must be received by the system by the petition filing date established by the retirement board pursuant to paragraph (B) of this rule to be valid.
- (b) Petition signatures and candidate eligibility shall be verified based on records of the retirement system and the requirements of Chapter 3309, of the Revised Code. Signatures that cannot be conclusively verified shall not be counted.
- (c) The names of qualified candidates shall be certified by a director of the retirement system and shall be subject to review and audit by the secretary of state. A qualified candidate is one who meets the requirements of Chapter 3309, of the Revised Code. In the event that there is a discrepancy between the certification by the officer of the retirement system and the results of the review and audit by the secretary of state, the determination of the secretary of state shall control and be final.
- (d) Based on the final certification, the names of qualified candidates shall be placed on the ballot for election. Each ballot shall also include a space for a write-in candidate.

(D) Voting

- (1) The retirement board may conduct an election by paper ballots or through electronic methods.
- (2)

- (a) Voting materials for each voting member or retirant of the retirement system shall include a list of candidates, information on each candidate, voting instructions, and any other materials the retirement board deems necessary.
 - (b) Voting materials shall be sent to eligible members or retirants no later than the last business day in January in an election year at the address on file with the retirement system.
- (3)
 - (a) For any election requiring a vote by members, the retirement board shall distribute ballots for such election to all members whose accounts have had contributions posted within the eighteen month period immediately preceding the month in which ballots are distributed; and
 - (b) To members whose accounts have not had contributions posted within the eighteen month period immediately preceding the month in which ballots are scheduled to be distributed, upon the members written request for a ballot.
- (4) The election count shall be monitored by a panel of judges consisting of representatives of the secretary of state and the attorney general. The representative of the secretary of state shall be the chief judge. If a representative from such offices is not available, a representative of the retirement system's independent auditor and/or the auditor of state may be substituted. If a representative of the secretary of state is not available, the chief judge, in order of precedence, shall be the representative of the attorney general, the representative of the auditor of state, or the representative of the retirement system's independent auditor.
- (5) If the ballot count results in a tie vote, the election shall be determined by a coin toss conducted by the judges with "heads" being assigned to the candidate whose last name is first alphabetically and "tails" assigned to the other candidate.
- (6) If a candidate is elected by a margin of less than one percent of the votes cast, a recount will automatically be conducted.
- (7) The chief judge shall provide a certification of the election results signed by all judges. The election results shall be submitted to the retirement board for its approval at the first regular retirement board meeting that is not less than thirty-one calendar days after certification of the results of the election.

- (8) Within thirty calendar days after the certification of the election count, an unsuccessful candidate may request a recount in writing to the retirement board together with a check payable to the retirement system for the costs of the recount in the amount of one hundred dollars; provided however, if the recount results in the requesting candidate winning the election, the cost shall be refunded.

(E) Vacancies

- (1) When an election is held to fill the vacant term of an elected member of the board, the election shall be held pursuant to paragraph (E) of this rule.
- (2) The retirement board by majority vote of the board shall declare the seat vacant and establish a board-meeting schedule to nominate, interview and select a successor member to fill the position.
- (3) The retirement board shall provide notice of the vacancy and the procedure and forms required to be considered as a qualified candidate to fill the vacancy.
 - (a) Candidates shall qualify under the same eligibility requirements as the predecessor in office.
 - (b) The names of qualified candidates shall be certified by a director of the retirement system and shall be subject to review and audit by the secretary of state. In the event that there is a discrepancy between the certification by the officer of the retirement system and the results of the review and audit by the secretary of state, the determination of the secretary of state shall control and be final.
- (4) At a public board meeting, each board member may nominate one candidate to fill the vacancy.
- (5) The board members shall interview the nominated candidates.
- (6) A successor member shall be elected from the list of candidates by a majority vote of the retirement board in a public meeting as follows:
 - (a) Two successive votes shall occur in order for one candidate to receive a majority. If no candidate receives a majority, successive votes shall continue with the candidate receiving the least number of votes eliminated after each vote until one candidate receives a majority vote of the board or until only two candidates remain.

- (b) In the event no candidate receives a majority vote and two candidates remain, one final vote shall occur. If neither candidate receives a majority vote, the winner shall be decided by a coin toss conducted by the election judge with “heads” assigned to the candidate whose last name is first in alphabetical order and “tails” to the other candidate.
 - (7) The election shall be monitored by a representative of the secretary of state, or if unavailable, by a representative of the attorney general, who shall serve as election judge and certify the results of the election.
 - (8) All documents regarding filling the vacancy, including resumes and forms required by the retirement system, shall be made available to any person upon request and payment of the cost of compiling, copying and mailing the documents.
- (F) An employee member of the board who retires while a member of the board shall be eligible to become a retirant member of the board when three years have elapsed from the member’s effective date of retirement and the date of the scheduled election for the retirant member seat. An employee member of the board retires while a member of the board when the member served on the board in the month immediately preceding the member’s effective date of retirement.

Effective: 6/16/2023

CERTIFIED ELECTRONICALLY

Certification

06/15/2023

Date

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 3309.04
Rule Amplifies: 3309.05, 3309.06, 3309.07, 3309.071, 3309.075,
3309.22
Prior Effective Dates: 12/02/2004, 08/10/2007, 04/03/2009, 01/07/2013,
04/10/2014, 04/30/2023

3309-1-18 **Payment of contributions.**

(A) For purposes of this rule:

- (1) "Employer" has the same meaning as in section 3309.01 of the Revised Code.
- (2) "Contribution report" means payroll data for each pay date that has been cleared of any errors or warnings.
- (3) "Surcharge" means the employer minimum compensation contribution amount determined pursuant to section 3309.491 of the Revised Code.

(B) Payments due under section 3309.47 of the Revised Code shall be ~~remitted to~~ received by the school employees retirement system by the fifth business day following the pay date.

(C) Contribution reports shall be ~~submitted to~~ posted online with the retirement system by the fifth business day following the pay date.

(D) Payments due under section 3309.51 of the Revised Code and paid by an employer directly to the employers' trust fund shall be ~~remitted-received by the retirement system~~ by the fifth business day following the pay date.

(E) Payments due to the employers' trust fund pursuant to section 3309.51 of the Revised Code and received from the amounts allocated under Chapter 3317. of the Revised Code, ~~section 3314.08 of the Revised Code, and section 3326.33 of the Revised Code~~ shall be remitted each month and attributed to that month.

(F) Annually, the retirement system shall issue a final school year statement that reconciles the estimated employer payments received with the employer payments owed. Within thirty days of the statement's issuance, the employer shall directly pay to the employers' trust fund any balance owed, or the retirement system shall directly refund to the employer any overpayments made. The retirement system shall not issue a refund to an employer whose reports or payments are delinquent.

(G) Surcharge payments due to the employers' trust fund shall be collected in one of the following ways:

- (1) An employer who chooses direct pay or an employer who does not receive amounts allocated under Chapter 3317 of the Revised Code ~~section 3314.08 or 3326.33 of the Revised Code may choose to~~ shall pay its surcharge directly to the employers' trust fund. ~~An employer who chooses this option must pay its surcharge~~ within thirty days after receipt of the certified amount due from the retirement system.

- (2) For those employers who do not choose the direct pay option under paragraph (G) (1) of this rule, as well as science, technology, engineering and mathematics schools and community schools~~employers who receive amounts allocated under section 3314.08 or 3326.33 of the Revised Code~~, the retirement system shall include surcharge payments in the estimated payments certified to the superintendent of public instruction pursuant to section 3309.51 of the Revised Code.
- (H) For any payments made pursuant to paragraphs (B), (D), (F) and (G)(1) of this rule, payment remittance information shall be submitted in the manner specified by the retirement system no later than the date the payment is ~~remitted~~received by the retirement system.
- (I) The retirement system may extend a due date for an employer upon a finding that good cause has been shown.
- (J) For purposes of section 3309.571 of the Revised Code, “days” refers to “business days.”
- (K) An employer shall repay the retirement system for any amounts paid by the retirement system as the result of employer errors in reporting or certifying information to the retirement system.

Effective:

Five Year Review (FYR) Dates: 2/1/2024

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: 3309.04
Rule Amplifies: 3309.47, 3309.49, 3309.491, 3309.51, 3309.55,
3309.571
Prior Effective Dates: 07/01/2010, 01/07/2013, 12/04/2014, 02/27/2017
(Emer.), 05/15/2017, 05/03/2019, 09/30/2021

5505-7-10

Employee contributions.

- (A) For the purpose of this rule, “employee contribution rate” shall mean the percentage of the member's annual salary required to be submitted to the state highway patrol retirement system (HRPS) pursuant to division (A) of section 5505.15 of the Revised Code.
- (B) An annual employee contribution rate, not to be less than ten per cent or exceed fourteen per cent, shall be determined by the board as it considers necessary to meet the amortization period requirement of section 5505.121 of the Revised Code at its ~~October~~ August meeting and shall be based on the actuarial valuation required by section 5505.12 of the Revised Code.
- (C) The employee contribution rate determined at the board’s ~~October~~ August meeting shall be effective the first day of the first full two week pay period of the following year.

Effective:

Five Year Review (FYR) Dates: 7/11/2023

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under:	111.15
Statutory Authority:	5505.07
Rule Amplifies:	5505.15
Prior Effective Dates:	09/16/2013